Pocono Township BOC Agenda November 3, 2025

POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA
November 3, 2025 | 6:00 p.m.

205 Old Mill Rd, Tannersville, PA
Zoom Participation
https://lus06web.zoom.us/s/89462933903

Meeting ID:
894 6293 3903
Passcode:
511717

Open Meeting
Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Announcements

Public Comment-NON-AGENDA ITEMS

Limited to 3 minutes per person, please state your name and if you are a Pocono Township Resident.
Presentations
Ralph Matergia-PJJWA Dissolution presentation (Possible Action Item)

Sal Caiazzo — Hanover Engineering — Cranberry Creek Apartments LDP 1369 Waiver Requests and
discussion regarding Open Space Fee’s (Possible Action Items)

Hearings

Motion to Open the Debt Ordinance Hearing (Action Item)
Motion to Close the Debt Ordinance Hearing (Action Item)
Motion to Ordinance 2025-22 Debt Ordinance (Action Item)

Motion to Open Food Truck Ordinance Hearing (Action Item)
Motion to Close the Food Truck Ordinance Hearing (Action Item)
Motion to Ordinance 2025-24 Food Truck Ordinance (Action Item)

Motion to Open the Recycling Ordinance Hearing (Action Item)
Motion to Close the Recycling Ordinance Hearing (Action Item)
Motion to Ordinance 2025-26 Recycling Ordinance (Action Item)



https://us06web.zoom.us/s/89462933903

Pocono Township BOC Agenda November 3, 2025

Resolutions

= Motion to approve Resolution 2025-34 for submission of Local Share Account (LSA) Statewide
Grant Application to be used for the Mountain View Park Improvements Project. (Possible Action
Item)

= Motion to Approve Resolution 2025-37 Accepting the revised Sewer Rules and Regulations.
(Possible Action Item)

= Motion to approve Resolution 2025- 38 accepting the preliminary plan approval of Cranberry
Creek Apartments LDP # 1369 (Possible Action Item)

= Motion to approve Resolution 2025- 39 extending the time period to meet the requirements of
Resolution 2024-28. (Possible Action Item)

Consent Agenda

= Motion to approve a consent agenda of the following items:

0 Old business consisting of the minutes of the October 20, 2025 regular meeting of the
Board of Commissioners.

o Financial transactions through November 3, 2025 as presented, including ratification of
expenditures in the amount of $ 629,893.60 for the following accounts: General Fund, Sewer
Operations, Gross Payroll, Capital Reserve, Construction Fund, Transfers. Discussion:
(Action Items)

NEW BUSINESS

Personnel

Report of the President —

Richard Wielebinski -

Commissioner Comments

Natasha Leap — Vice President

Ellen Gnandt — Commissioner

= Update — Solar Field

= Update — Kennel

= Motion to install split system 18k btu & perform electrical work from Furino/Zindle Electric not to
exceed 6000 in the MVP Park Office. (Possible Action Item)

Brian Winot — Commissioner

= Motion to authorize Solicitor to advertise the Historic Overlay for public hearing. (Possible Action
Item)

Mike Velardi — Commissioner

" Tomorrow is Election Day, make sure to cast your votes.
] Next Week is Veteran’s Day, IF YOU'RE A VET - THANK YOU, IF YOU'RE NOT - THANK ONE
" Motion to authorize Township Solicitor to obtain an administrative warrant to demolish Dangerous

Structure 229 Hemlock Dr. (Possible Action Item)



Pocono Township BOC Agenda

Reports

Township Manager’s Report — Jerrod Belvin

= Kenny’s Way Update-Carriage Stone

*  PennDOT Update

= MC250 PA Update

Police — Chief James Wagner (2’'nd Meeting of Month)
Public Works/Sewer Report — Patrick Briegel

= Sewer Business Update

=  MCTI & Sullivan Trail Expansions
= Current Public Works Projects

Township Events Report — Jennifer Gambino (First Meeting of Month)
= Park Parking Program

Zoning — SFM Consulting

Township Engineer Report — T&M Associates

= Sewer Business Update

= Learn Road safety enhancement project and roundabout survey work.

= TASA Project
= TLC walking bridge.

Township Solicitor Report — Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P.

= Sewer Business Update

= General legal update

= Varela Appeal Decision by Judge Zulick
= Learn Road Easement Process

Adjournment

November 3, 2025













































SECTION 16. No Bond constituting one of the Bonds shall be entitled to any
benefit under this Ordinance nor shall it be valid, obligatory or enforceable for any purpose until
such Bond shall have been registered and authenticated by the Certificate of Authentication
endorsed thereon duly signed by the Paying Agent. The Paying Agent is hereby authorized to
register and authenticate the Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof.

SECTION 17. This Township covenants to and with registered owners, from
time to time, of the Bonds that shall be outstanding, from time to time, pursuant to this Ordinance,
that this Township shall: (i) include the amount of the debt service on the Bonds, for each fiscal
year of this Township in which the sums are payable, in its budget for that year, (ii) appropriate
those amounts from its general revenues for the payment of the debt service, and (1ii) duly and
punctually pay or cause to be paid from the Sinking Fund (hereinafter identified) or any other of
its revenues or funds the principal of and interest on each of the Bonds at the dates and places and
in the manner stated therein, according to the true intent and meaning thereof; and, for such
budgeting, appropriation and payment, this Township shall and does pledge, irrevocably, its full
faith, credit and taxing power. As provided in the Debt Act, the foregoing covenant of this
Township shall be specifically enforceable.

SECTION 18.  There is created, pursuant to the requirements of the Debt Act,
one or more sinking funds for the Bonds (collectively, the “Sinking Fund”) including, if applicable,
for multiple series or subseries, or mandatory sinking funds. Each Sinking Fund shall be
administered in accordance with the Debt Act.

If any of the Bonds shall be Term Bonds, as specified in the Addendum accepted
in accordance with Section 4, a separate fund or account shall be created within and as a part of a
Sinking Fund and designated as a “Mandatory Sinking Fund.” The Paying Agent, as the sinking
fund depositary, shall make deposits into the Mandatory Sinking Fund, from funds deposited by
the Township into the Sinking Fund, in such amounts and on such dates as money shall be required
for the payment upon stated maturity of the Term Bonds that shall be outstanding, if any, on their
stated maturity date, and to mandatory redemption prior to stated maturity of such Term Bonds on
such dates and in such amounts as are specified in the Addendum.

The Paying Agent, so long as any Term Bonds shall remain outstanding, or as soon
after such date as shall suit the convenience of the Paying Agent and shall allow sufficient time
for mailing of the requisite notice of redemption, shall select or draw, by lot, in a fair and equitable
manner, a principal amount of Term Bonds of the appropriate maturity equal to the amount then
required to be redeemed. The Paying Agent shall, upon selection of Term Bonds of the appropriate
maturity so to be called for redemption prior to maturity, mail the requisite notice of redemption
on behalf of the Township. The Township covenants to assume and to pay all costs and expenses
related to the mandatory redemption of such Term Bonds.

The amount required to be deposited in the Mandatory Sinking Fund on any given
date shall be reduced by the principal amount of any Term Bonds of the appropriate maturity that
shall have been purchased or tendered in lieu of mandatory redemption in the immediately
preceding period, as provided in Section 12 hereof, and the amount of any Term Bonds of the

-8-









all tax-exempt obligations reasonably expected to be issued by all entities that issue bonds or
Bonds on behalf of this Township and all “subordinate entities” (within the meaning of Section
265(b)(3)(E) of the Code) of this Township, in the aggregate, will exceed Ten Million Dollars
($10,000,000) (excluding obligations issued to refund (other than to advance refund) any
obligation to the extent that the amount of the refunding obligation does not exceed the outstanding
amount of the refunded obligation) in the calendar year of issuance and, accordingly, thereby
designate the Bonds (to the extent they are not “deemed designated” under Section 265 (b)(3)(D)(1i1)
of the Code), on behalf of this Township, as “qualified tax-exempt obligations,” as defined in

Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code, for the purposes and effect contemplated by Section 265 of the
Code.

SECTION 28.  This Township elects to retire the 2024 Note, by optional
redemption prior to stated maturity, on one or more .dates to be illustrated in the schedules
accompanying the Addendum (the “Redemption Date™) in accordance with the rights reserved to
this Township in the 2024 Note. Officers and agents of the Board of Commissioners are hereby
authorized and directed to give irrevocable instructions to the lender of the 2024 Note to redeem the
2024 Note in full, in accordance with this election of the Board of Commissioners, and to take all
such actions as may be necessary and appropriate to accomplish the redemption and retirement of
the 2024 Note, following the acceptance of the final terms and conditions of the Bonds and
Addendum as described in Section 4 hereof.

SECTION 29. This Township shall enter into, and hereby authorizes and directs
the President or Vice President of the Board of Commissioners to execute, a Continuing Disclosure
Certificate (the “Certificate”) on behalf of this Township on or before the date of issuance and
delivery of the Bonds. Such Certificate shall be executed and delivered to satisfy the terms and
conditions of the accepted Proposal for sale of the Bonds and Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15¢2-12, and shall be substantially in the form presented to this meeting, which
is hereby approved, together with any changes therein made and approved by the executing officer
of the Board of Commissioners, whose execution and delivery thereof shall constitute conclusive
evidence of such approval. A copy of the Certificate shall be filed with the Township Secretary
and shall be and hereby is made part of this Ordinance.

This Township hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out
all of the provisions of the Certificate. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance,
failure of this Township to comply with the Certificate shall not be considered an event of default
with respect to the Bonds; however, any registered owner of the Bonds may take such actions as
may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court
order, to cause this Township to comply with its obligations under this Section and such
Certificate.

SECTION 30. The Bonds shall be made available for purchase under a book-
entry only system available through The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation
(“DTC”). If applicable, at or prior to settlement for the Bonds, this Township and the Paying
Agent shall execute or signify their approval of a Representation Letter in substantially the form
on file with DTC (the “Representation Letter”). The appropriate officers of this Township and the

-11-






beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds under or through DTC or any such participant, or any
other person which is not shown on the Register as being a registered owner of Bonds, with respect
to (1) the Bonds, (2) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any such participant, (3)
the payment by DTC or any such participant of any amount in respect of the principal or
redemption price of or interest on the Bonds, (4) any notice which is permitted or required to be
given to holders of the Bonds under this Ordinance, (5) the selection by DTC or any such
participant of any person to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Bonds, and
(6) any consent given or other action taken by DTC as holder of the Bonds.

(e) So long as the Bonds or any portion thereof are registered in the name of
DTC or any nominee thereof, all notices required or permitted to be given to the holders of such
Bonds under this Ordinance shall be given to DTC as provided in the Representation Letter.

® In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to
holders of Bonds pursuant to this Ordinance by this Township or the Paying Agent with respect to
any consent or other action to be taken by holders of Bonds, DTC shall consider the date of receipt
of notice requesting such consent or other action as the record date for such consent or other action,
provided that this Township or the Paying Agent may establish a special record date for such
consent or other action. This Township or the Paying Agent shall give DTC notice of such special
record date not less than 15 calendar days in advance of such special record date to the extent
possible.

(2) The book-entry only system for registration of the ownership of the Bonds
may be discontinued at any time if either (1) after notice to this Township and the Paying Agent,
DTC determines to resign as securities depository for the Bonds, or (2) after notice to DTC and
the Paying Agent, this Township determines that continuation of the system of book-entry transfers
through DTC (or through a successor securities depository) is not in the best interests of this
Township. In either of such events (unless in the case described in clause (2) above, this Township
appoints a successor securities depository), the Bonds shall be delivered in registered certificate
form to such persons, and in such maturities and principal amounts, as may be designated by DTC,
but without any liability on the part of this Township or the Paying Agent for the accuracy of such
designation. Whenever DTC requests this Township and the Paying Agent to do so, this Township
and the Paying Agent shall cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice

to arrange for another securities depository to maintain custody of certificates evidencing the
Bonds.

SECTION 32. The President or Vice President of the Board of Commissioners,
the Township Secretary and other officers and agents of this Township, are authorized and directed
to perform such acts as may be necessary to facilitate the settlement for the Bonds.

SECTION 33.  Any reference in this Ordinance to an officer or member of this

Township shall be deemed to refer to his or her duly qualified successor in office, or other
authorized representative, if applicable.

-13-
























The Bonds stated to mature on or after , are subject to redemption prior
to maturity, at the option of the Issuer, as a whole, on , , Or on any date thereafter,

upon payment of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for
redemption.

The Bonds stated to mature on or after , are subject to redemption prior
to maturity, at the option of the Issuer, from time to time, in part, in any order of maturity selected
by the Issuer, on , , or on any date thereafter. Ifless than all Bonds of any particular
maturity are to be redeemed, the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed shall be drawn by lot by
the Paying Agent. Any such redemption shall be upon payment of the principal amount to be
redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.

The Bonds stated to mature on , and on , , are subject
to mandatory redemption prior to maturity, in the amounts and on June 1 of the years set forth in
the following schedules as drawn by lot by the Paying Agent in behalf of the Issuer:

Bonds Maturing on

Year Amount
$ ; and

Bonds Maturing on

Year Amount

Any such redemption shall be upon application of money available for the purpose in the
Mandatory Sinking Fund established under the Ordinance and shall be upon payment of the
principal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption. In lieu of such mandatory redemption, the Paying Agent, as sinking fund depository,
in behalf of the Issuer, may purchase, from money available for the purpose in the Sinking Fund
established under the Ordinance, at a price not to exceed the principal amount plus accrued interest,
or the Issuer may tender to the Paying Agent, all or part of the Bonds subject to being drawn for
redemption in any such year.

In the case of any partial redemption of Bonds of any maturity that is subject to
mandatory sinking fund redemption, the Issuer shall be entitled to designate whether the amount
to be redeemed shall be credited against the principal amount of such Bonds due at maturity or
credited against the principal amount of such Bonds scheduled to be called for mandatory sinking
fund redemption on any particular date or dates, in each case in an integral multiple of $5,000
principal amount.

EXHIBIT B
Page 4 of 9


















CERTIFICATE

L, the undersigned, Secretary of the TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, in Monroe County,
Pennsylvania (the “Township™), certify that: the foregoing is a true and correct copy of an
Ordinance that duly was enacted by affirmative vote of a majority of all members of the Board of
Commissioners of the Township at a meeting duly held on November 3, 2025; said Ordinance has
been recorded in the minute book of the Board of Commissioners of the Township; a notice with
respect to the intent to enact said Ordinance has been published as required by law; said Ordinance
was available for inspection by any interested citizen requesting the same in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Unit Debt Act of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and
such notice; and said Ordinance has not been amended, altered, modified or repealed as of the date
of this Certificate.

I further certify that the Board of Commissioners of the Township met the advance
notice and public comment requirements of the Sunshine Act, 65 Pa.C.S. §701 ef seq., including
by advertising the time and place of said meeting, by posting prominently a notice of said meeting
at the principal office of the Township or at the public building in which said meeting was held,
and by providing a reasonable opportunity for public comment prior to enactment of said
Ordinance, all as required by such Act.

I further certify that: the total number of members of the Board of Commissioners
of the Township is five (5); the vote of members of the Board of Commissioners of the Township
upon said Ordinance was called and duly was recorded upon the minutes of said meeting; and
members of the Board of Commissioners of the Township voted upon said Ordinance in the
following manner:

Ellen Gnandt -
Natasha Leap -
Mike Velardi -
Richard Wielebinski -
Brian K. Winot -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I set my hand and affix the official seal of the
Township, this 3" day of November, 2025.

Township Secretary

(SEAL)












PUBLIC NUISANCE
A Public Nuisance is an act, condition, or omission that unreasonably and significantly
interferes with rights commonly held by the general public—such as those related to public
health, safety, peace, comfort, or convenience. Such Public Nuisances affect an indefinite
number of people or the community as a whole and may include activities or conditions that
create widespread annoyance, discomfort, alarm, or risk. Public Nuisances disrupt public order,

diminish the collective quality of life,. and may violate statutes, ordinances, or regulations
designed to protect the community at largg.

TOWNSHIP -
Pocono Townsh1p, Monroe Cpunty, Pennsylvama

§ 260-4 Moblle Food Vendor Regulatlons

A. Location.
(1) A MFV must be located on private property.
' * (2) No MFV shall be located so as to obstruct a public sidewalk,
public right-of-way, or clear sight triangle.

(3) MFVs are only permitted w1th111 the Township’s Commercial
zonmg district as set forth in Chapter 470. - i

(4)y A MFV selling prepared food shall not be located within Two
HundLed (200°) feet of an established restaurant during the restaurant's operating hours unless
written perrmssmn of the restaurant owner is provided. The Townshlp sha]l notify affected
* restaurants prior to approval of a permit.

“(5) A MFV shall be pos1t1oned on Improved designated parking
spaces and shall not block: the main drive aisle or impact circulation overall; other access to
loading area; or, emergency access and fire lanes.

B. Hours of Operation.

(1) MFVs may operate only between the hours of 6:00 AM and
10:00 PM, unless otherwise approved as part of a temporary, special event.

C. Noise/Light

(1) MFVs use/operation of a generator shall not be audibly loud
from a distance of 100 feet away. Complaints about a MFV vehicle or generator noise will be
grounds for the Enforcement Officer to require the MFV to change site location or move to
another property.

" (2) All portable or temporary lighting shall meet Township Code

requirements and may remain turned on until 10:30 PM to allow for the safety of patrons and
employees, and to allow for proper site cleanup.

D. Dining Afeas.-
(1) Designed dining areas for MFV patrons are not permitted
unless approved as part of a temporary use event or vendor court.


































(1) The authorized collector shall submit the recycling report and
all weigh slips obtained from the facility or facilities to which the recyclables were delivered or
taken, which shall be submitted quarterly to the Township. For purposes of submitting such
weigh slips and recycling reports quarterly to the Township, the authorized collector who
removed the recyclables from the property shall be the agent for the operator of the
establishment or sponsor of the activity and shall be responsible for completing and submitting
such to the Township. Each such quarterly recycling report shall be submitted on or before the
last day of the first month of each quarter, for the preceding quarter. Quarters shall run on a
calendar-year basis, thus: January through March; April through June; July through September;
and October through December.

§ 356-10. Mandatory source separation of leaf waste. All persons who gather
yard waste shall source separate such leaf waste and place it for semiannual curbside collection
at the time designated or deliver it directly to a recycling dropoff center as designated by the
Township.

§ 356-11. Enforcement

A. From the time of placement for collection of residentially generated
recyclable items for collection in accordance with the terms of this chapter, the items shall be
and become the property of the authorized collector. It shall be a violation of this chapter for any
person unauthorized by the Township to collect or pick up or cause to be collected or picked up
any such items, and each such collection in violation hereof from one or more locations shall
constitute a separate and distinct offense punishable as hereinafter provided.

B. Any person violating a provision of this chapter or a recycling
regulation pursuant thereto shall be given a written notice thereof from the Code Enforcement
Officer, upon recommendation by the Township Manager (the "notice"). The notice shall give
the person a period of 30 days to comply with the provisions of this chapter or the recycling
regulations. If, after receipt of the notice, the person continues to violate the provisions of this
chapter or the recycling regulations, the person shall be prosecuted as provided below.

C. Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be
prosecuted in the manner provided by law before a District Magistrate and, upon conviction of
such violation, shall be subject to a fine not in excess of the sum of $300, together with the cost
of prosecution. Each day on which such violation or violations occur and each day on which
such violation or violations continue to occur shall be considered as a separate offense for each
and every day of such violation or violations. Upon failure of the person so convicted to pay the
fines so imposed, confinement shall be ordered in the Monroe County Prison for a period of not
less than three days and not in excess of 30 days. All portions of the fines to the Township for
violation of the Pocono Township Recycling Ordinance and/or recycling regulations applicable
shall be paid to the Township of Pocono and shall be earmarked to be spent on the administrative












Building Sewer shall mean the extension from the sewage drainage system of any Improved
Property to the Lateral serving such Improved Property. It shall extend from the building line
to the right of way of a road or easement and connect the building sewer to the sewer lateral
as depicted on the Township’s standard construction details provided in the Construction
Standards. The Building Sewer shall be owned and maintained by the property served.

Building or Service Lateral or Lateral shall mean the sewer line located within a road right of
way or sanitary sewer easement extending from the end of the Building Sewer to the sewer
main as depicted on the Township’s standard construction details provided in the
Construction Standards. The Lateral shall be owned and maintained by the Township.

Commercial Establishment shall mean any room, group of rooms, building or enclosure, or
group thereof, connected, directly or indirectly, to the Sewer System and used or intended
for use in the operation of a business enterprise for the sale and distribution of any product,
commodity, article or service, which maintains separate toilet, sink or other plumbing
facilities in the room or group of rooms utilized for such business enterprise.

Commonwealth shall mean the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Connection Ordinance shall mean the Ordinance enacted by this Township requiring
Owners of certain Improved Property located in the Township to connect to such Sewer and
use the same in such manner as this Township may ordain.

Connection Permit shall mean the permit issued by the Township authorizing an Owner to
connect an Improved Property to the Sewer System.

Cooperation Agreement shall mean the Amended and Restated Intermunicipal Cooperation
Agreementdated May 1, 2010, as well as the First Supplement to the Amended and Restated
Intermunicipal Cooperation Agreement dated November 1, 2010, all between the Borough
of Stroudsburg, the Township of Hamilton, the Township of Pocono, the Township of
Smithfield, the Township of Stroud, the Stroud Township Sewer Authority, and the Brodhead
Creek Regional Authority and any subsequent amendment thereto.

County shall mean the County of Monroe, Pennsylvania.

Customer Facilities Fee is the customer facilities fee described in Act 57 of 2003 for the
actual cost of the Building Sewer (i.e. facilities, including labor and other costs associated
with the installation thereof, serving the Improved Property from the property line or the curb
stop to the dwelling or building to be served) when installed by the Township. The fee also
includes the cost of a grinder pump unit furnished by the Township for pick-up and
installation by the Owner.

6/26/24 2



DEP shall mean the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection or any successor
agency of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Developed Property shall mean any property within the Sewered Area which was an
Improved Property on October 20, 2009.

Domestic Sanitary Sewage shall mean normal water-borne from a typical sanitary sewage
user , such as wastes from kitchens, water closets, lavatories and laundry facilities,
discharged from any Improved Property, as well as water-borne wastes of similar character
from similar facilities in offices, hotels, stores, restaurants, hospitals, schools and other
Commercial, Educational, Industrial and Institutional Establishments, but in all cases
excluding Prohibited Wastes.

Dwelling Unit shall mean any room, group of rooms, single family home, house trailer,
apartment, condominium, cooperative or other enclosure and occupied or intended for
occupancy as living quarters by an individual, a single family or other discrete group of
persons, excluding institutional dormitories.

DRBC shall mean the Delaware River Basin Commission.

Educational Establishment shall mean any room, group of rooms, building or other
enclosure connected, directly or indirectly, to the Sewer System and used or intended for
use, in whole or in part, for educational purposes, including both public and private schools
or colleges.

Engineer A Professional Engineer licensed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and
retained by the Township providing services to the Township for assistance with the
management and operations of the sewer system. The term Township Engineer or Sewer
Engineer shall be considered the same for the purposes of this Resolution.

EPA shall mean the Environmental Protection Agency of the United States of America, or any
successor federal department or agency.

Equivalent Dwelling Unit or EDU shall mean the unit of measure deemed to constitute the
estimated, equivalent amount of Domestic Sanitary Sewage discharged by a single-family
Dwelling Unit, equal to 247 gallons/day water consumption metered by BCRA, or
determined by Pocono Township and used for determining the following:

a. The User Charge;
b. Tapping Fees payable by a new User;
C. Additional Tapping Fees payable by Users who:

1. construct an addition to an existing Improved Property;
2. expand an existing use of an Improved Property;
3. change the use of an Improved Property;

6/26/24 3



4. increase sewage use as measured by either a water or sewer meter, for
any reason other than an unidentified loss of water or inflow and
infiltration which is remediated within two (2) months of determination
of where the loss is occurring.

Extra Strength Wastes shall mean Sewage which exceeds the limits set forth in this
resolution-and/or as otherwise mandated from time to time by any Regulatory Authority
having jurisdiction of sewage discharges.

Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) shall mean fats, oils and grease as determined by laboratory
analysis using analytical methods allowed for NPDES reporting as listed in the latest
publication of 40 CFR 136 or any successor regulation.

Flow Allocation, Hydraulic shall refer to the total daily flow allocated to a user as determined
by this Resolution and the connection permit.

Flow Allocation, Organic shall refer to the mass loading of organic and inorganic materials
measured in lbs/day as further defined by this Resolution.

Grease Interceptor shall mean a large tank or device so constructed as to separate and trap
or hold fats, oil, and grease substances from the sewage discharged from a facility in order
to keep fats, oil, and grease substances from entering the sewer system.

Improved Property shall mean any property in the Sewered Area of the Township upon which
there is erected a structure intended for continuous or periodic habitation, occupancy or
use by human beings or animals and from which structure Domestic Sanitary Sewage and/or
Industrial Wastes shall be or may be discharged into the Sewer System and is subject to the
Connection Ordinance.

Industrial Establishment shall mean any Improved Property used or intended for use, wholly
or in part, for the manufacturing, processing, cleaning, laundering, or assembling of any
product, commodity or article, or any other Improved Property from which wastes, in
addition to or other than Domestic Sanitary Sewage, shall or may be discharged.

Industrial Wastes shall mean any and all wastes discharged from an Improved Property
and/or any wastewater having characteristics which may have the potential to be
detrimental to the Treatment Plant, other than Domestic Sanitary Sewage.

Institutional Establishment shall mean any room, group of rooms, building or other
enclosure connected, directly or indirectly, to the Sewer System, including institutional
dormitories and Educational Establishments, and which do not constitute a Commercial
Establishment, a Dwelling Unit, or an Industrial Establishment.

6/26/24 4






Section 307(b) and (c) of the Act (33 U.S.C. 1347) which applies to a specific category of
Industrial users.

Owner shall mean any Person vested with title, legal or equitable, sole or partial, of any
Improved Property, and the party ultimately responsible for the payment for sewer service.

Operational and Maintenance Plan (O&M) shall refer to the plan developed by the Township
for operations, system maintenance, allowable materials, and construction standards for
the System. This O&M Plan, as amended from time to time by the Township, is incorporated
by reference into this Resolution.

Pass Through shall mean a discharge from the Sewer System which exits the Treatment
Plant into Waters of the United States in quantities or concentrations which, alone or in
conjunction with a discharge or discharges from other sources, is a cause of a violation of
any requirement of the NPDES Permit, including an increase in the magnitude or duration of
aviolation.

Person shall mean any individual, partnership, company, association, society, trust,
corporation or other group or entity, including municipalities, municipality authorities,
school districts and other units of government.

pH shall mean the logarithm of the reciprocal of the concentration of hydrogen ions,
expressed in grams per liter of solution, indicating the degree of acidity or alkalinity of a
substance.

ppm shall mean parts per million parts sewer, by weight.

Reservation Fee(or Standby Fee) shall mean a fee charged for future development with
proper standing with the Township to maintain committed capacity in the sewer system for
the said future development.

Regulatory Authorities or Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ) shall mean collectively, BCRA,
EPA, DEP, DRBC, PaPUC, and any other local, county, regional, Commonwealth or Federal
authority having jurisdiction on the date hereof or that may have jurisdiction at any time in
the future over any aspect of the Sewer System, including influents, collections,
conveyance, operations, land use, effluents, rate setting, solid wastes and emissions.

Rules and Regulations being this document, means the prescribed methods adopted by the
Township from time to time by resolution, connections to and general use of, the Sewer
System and/or the Treatment Plant. Including but not limited to this resolution governing the
operations, use and operations of the sewer system.

Septage shall mean any Sewage from holding tanks such as vessels, chemical toilets,
campers, trailers, and septic tanks; provided that such term shall not include any Sewage

6/26/24 6



transported to the Treatment Plant by or at the direction of BCRA due to a new connection,
atemporary reduction or disruption in the flow of Sewage through the Sewer System.

Sewage shall mean the liquid and water-carried Domestic Sanitary Sewage or Industrial
Wastes from Dwelling Units, and Commercial, Educational, Industrial and Institutional
Establishments, whether treated or untreated. The terms "waste" and "wastewater" shall be
deemed as Sewage by definition.

Sewage Treatment Agreement shall mean the Sewage Treatment Agreement between the
Township and BCRA dated as of March 1, 2011, including all modifications, amendments,
supplements, and restatements thereto made and delivered from time to time and at such
time constituting part hereof.

Sewer shall mean any pipe or conduit constituting a part of the Sewer System used or usable
for collection of Domestic Sanitary Sewage and/or Industrial Wastes.

Sewer System shall mean all facilities, at any particular time, acquired, constructed, or
operated by, or on behalf of, the Township for collecting, pumping, transporting, treating
and/or disposing of Domestic Sanitary Sewage and/or Industrial Wastes discharged by an
Improved Property within this Township and subject to the Connection Ordinance.

Sewered Area shall mean that geographic area or areas of the Township served or to be
served by the Sewer System, including all existing or future sewer areas or districts
established and approved, from time to time, pursuant to Act 537 and other applicable laws;

Shall means mandatory.

Significant Violation shall mean either (a) the discharge of one or more Prohibited
Discharge(s) into the Sewer System, (b) the occurrence of an event or circumstance, caused
in whole orin part by a User's non-compliance with/violation of this Resolution or any of the
Rules and Regulations, such that the Township's ability to fully comply with all agreements
and other requirements to which it is subject in relation to the Sewer System and/or the
Treatment Plant, or otherwise relating to its operation of the Sewer System, may be
hindered, delayed or jeopardized, and/or (c) be the cause, in whole or in part, of the
Township being subjected to Violation Costs and/or surcharges, as defined in, and as
provided for, in the Sewage Treatment Agreement.

Slug, Slug Discharge, or Slug Load shall mean any Discharge at a flow rate or concentration,
which could cause a violation of the prohibited discharge standards. A "Slug Discharge" is
any Discharge of a non-routine, episodic nature, including but not limited to an accidental
spill or a non-customary batch discharge, which as a reasonable potential to cause
Interference or Pass Through, or in any other way violates the Rules and Regulations or Legal
Requirements.

6/26/24 7



Street shall mean and shall include any street, road, lane, court, cul-de-sac, alley, public

way or public square, including such streets as are dedicated to public use, and such streets
as are owned by private Persons.

Surcharges shall mean a mandatory payment for exceedances in flow, organic or inorganic
mass loading discharged to the Township’s system beyond the allowable discharges as set
forth in this Resolution for each EDU allocated to a property/connection.

Suspended Solids shall mean the total suspended matter that floats on the surface of, or is

suspended in, water, wastewater, or other liquids, and which is removable by laboratory
filtering.

Tapping Fee shall mean the tapping fee described in Act 57 of 2003 payable by the Owner of
any Improved Property in the area served by the Sewer System which actually connects or is
required to be connected pursuant to the Connection Ordinance then in effect requiring
such connection or which otherwise connects to the Sewer System.

Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) shall mean total dissolved solids as determined by laboratory
analysis using analytical methods allowed for NPDES reporting as listed in the latest
publication of 40 CFR 136 or any successor regulation.

Total Phosphorous (P) shall mean total phosphorous as determined by laboratory analysis
using analytical methods allowed for NPDES reporting as listed in the latest publication of
40 CFR 136, or any successor regulation.

Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) shall mean residual chlorine as determined by laboratory
analysis using analytical methods allowed for NPDES reporting as listed in the latest
publication of 40 CFR 136 or any successor regulation.

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) shall mean total suspended solids as determined by
laboratory analysis using analytical methods allowed for NPDES reporting as listed in the
latest publication of 40 CFR 136 or any successor regulation:

Township shall mean the Township of Pocono, Monroe County, Pennsylvania, a political
subdivision of the Commonwealth, acting by and through its Board of Commissioners or, in
appropriate cases, acting by and through its agents, including BCRA or other authorized
representatives.

Township SCADA System shall mean the Supervisory, Control, and Data Acquisition System
constructed and maintained by the Township to monitor and control major sewer
components of the Sewer System.

6/26/24 8



Treatment Plant shall mean the Sewage treatment and disposal system facilities owned and
operated by BCRA, together with all appurtenant facilities and properties, and together with

any additions, improvements, enlargements and/or modifications thereto from time to time
acquired or constructed.

Types of Service shall mean:

a. Commercial - Improved Property where the User is engaged in trade and/or
commerce.
b. Industrial - Improved Property for use in manufacturing, processing, and

distribution activities.

C. Municipal or Public - A political subdivision of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or agency thereof, a municipal authority, school district or other
similar public bodies.

d. Residential - Sewer service for residential households for customary sanitary
purposes.

User shall mean the Owner, a tenant or other Person who contributes, causes, or permits
the contribution of Domestic Sanitary Sewage and/or Industrial Wastes into the Sewer
System from an Improved Property as further defined below:

a. Small System User shall be that user that has a flow allocation of 10 or less
EDUs.

b. Medium System User shall be those users between 11 EDUs and 50 EDUs

C. Large System User shall be those users greater than 50 EDUs, or, Medium

System users which have Industrial Discharges or potential for discharge of
hazardous or prohibited discharges as determined by the Engineer.

User Charge (or Fee) shall mean the periodic charge imposed for services, or availability of
services, provided by the Sewer System, as established by Resolution of the Township, from
time to time. A User Charge may include surcharges for uses beyond allocated flow either
organic or hydraulic.

Violation shall mean (a) the discharge of any Extra Strength Waste by a User, or (b) any other
breach by a User of any provision of any connection or Industrial Waste permit, this

Resolution or any Rule or Regulation, which violation does not constitute a Significant
Violation.

Violation Costs shall mean all direct and indirect costs and expenses, fines, penalties,
liabilities, damages and other costs or expenses (including legal and engineering fees and

6/26/24 9



expenses) incurred by the Township as a result of a Violation and/or a Significant Violation

by a User.

Inthese Rules and Regulations, the singular shall include the plural and the masculine shall
include the feminine and the neuter.

SECTION 2 - CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

2.1 CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

A

Use of the Sewer System by a User shall be in accordance with this and other
applicable resolutions and ordinances of this Township, and the Rules and
Regulations.

The Township will furnish sewer service in consideration of the timely
payment by User of the applicable Tapping Fee, , Customer Facilities Fee,
User Charge, and other charges described herein and set forth on the
Schedule of Public Sewer Rates and Charges attached hereto as "Schedule 1"
and incorporated herein by reference, as the same may be amended or
supplemented from time to time. The Township hereby reserves the right, as
often as it may deem necessary, to alter or amend such rates and charges, as
well as the Rules and Regulations.

2.2 APPLICATION FOR SERVICE AND CONTRACTS; SEWER RATES: TAPPING FEES

A.

6/26/24

Sewer service shall not be provided to any Improved Property until application
shall have been made to the Township, or its agent, by the Owner of such
Improved Property or by his authorized agent in accordance with the
Connection Ordinance, and a Connection Permit issued by the Township
authorizing same. Such application shall be made upon a form prescribed by
the Township, wherein the Owner shall state fully all purposes for which he
shall desire such service and shall answer accurately all necessary questions.
The application for sewer service (regardless of User or applicant) shall
constitute a binding, legal representation by the Owner of such Improved
Property. Upon approval of the application, issuance of the Connection
Permit, and payment of the appropriate fees and charges, the Owner shall
install and connect {unless otherwise provided by the Township) the Building
Sewer to the Lateral, at the sole cost and expense of the Owner.

The application shall be subject to payment of all Tapping Fees, and Customer
Facilities Fees then in effect and applicable to the Improved Property which is
the subject of the application. The application, the Connection Ordinance,
this resolution, as amended, and the Rules and Regulations shall regulate the
sewer service to such Improved Property. The Township may require, prior to

10



approval of service, special contracts, or agreements in addition to an
application for sewer service, if:

1.

4.

5.

Service is for a new subdivision and/or land development;
Construction of extensions and/or other facilities are necessary;

A person shall contract with the Township to lay service pipe to the
Improved Property, it being normal procedure for the Township not to
furnish material or labor for use upon private Improved Property;

An Improved property will operate a private sanitary sewage treatment
or pre-treatment facility; or

Deemed necessary by the Township.

C. EDUs shall be attributed to an Improved Property as follows:

1.

6/26/24

Single Family Dwelling Units and small system users shall be
attributed no less than one (1) EDU.-Each principal use, as defined by
the Township’s Zoning Ordinance or as determined by the Township
Zoning Officer, on a parcel shall have no less than one EDU for each
use.

Any Commercial, Educational, Industrial, Multi-residential, Mixed use
(commercial/residential) and Institutional properties served by a
metered water supply shall be attributed the number of EDUs
determined from their maximum monthly average (i.e. highest month
of the year) metered water usage, times 110%, based upon water
meter data the twelve (12) month period preceding the date of
connection. If sewage meters are utilized, attributed flows shall be 100
% of the metered use over the highest month during a twelve (12)
consecutive month period. For proposed development, the applicant
may utilize metered water consumption from a similar existing facility
to estimate sewer flows with 110 % of the highest month from that
facility.

Commercial, Educational, Industrial, Multi-residential, Mixed use
(commercial/residential) and Institutional properties that do not have
metered water service shall be attributed EDUs calculated in
accordance with the provisions of Exhibit "C" attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference or metered flow data from a similar
facility as outlined above.

Improved Properties which, prior to connection, are operating a private
sanitary sewage treatment plant to provide sewer service for that
Improved Property, shall have the option to be attributed EDUs in
accordance with either the provisions of Section 2.2.C.2. above, or

11






6/26/24

recalculation, as set forth herein. The Township shall have the right, upon ten
(10) days' notice, to discontinue (or cause to be discontinued) sewer
and/water or service until such an application has been submitted and
approved.

Unless supported or otherwise restricted by a special services agreement, in
the case of Medium and Large System Users, at no time shall any flows from
any User exceed 25% of the daily flow allocated to a property on any given day.
At no time shallany monthly flow exceed the maximum allocated flow. Should
the flows exceed the monthly flows from normal discharges due to over
usage, or by more than 50 % of one single EDU (e.g., 124 gpd), the user shall
purchase additional EDU(s) for the overages both in terms of User Fees and
Tapping Fees.

Peak rates of flow from a User shall be limited to a maximum of 250% of the

purchased capacity or 0.429 gpm/EDU as measured over a maximum of a 10-
minute period.

Changes in Governmental Regulations

All permits, contracts or agreements for sewer service shall be subjectto such
changes or other modifications as may be required or appropriate to reflect

changes in applicable law, rule, or regulation of a governmental body,
including the BCRA.

Tapping Fees

1. A Tapping Fee is hereby imposed against the Owner of any Improved
Property to be served by the Sewer System which actually connects to
or is required to be connected thereto pursuant to the Connection
Ordinance then in effect, or by special agreement between such
Owner and the Township, governing such connection. Calculation and
itemization of the maximum lawful Tapping Fee is attached hereto as
Exhibit "B" and made a part hereof. The Tapping Fee shall be set by
Township Fee Schedule up to the maximum amount shown in the
Tapping Fee Study, subject to the Provisions of Act 57 of 2003.

2. The Tapping Fee shall be due and payable at the earlier of: (1) the time
application is made to the Township to make connection to the Sewer
System or, if applicable, the date when the Township shall connect any
such Improved Property to the Sewer System, at the cost and expense
of the Owner, when such Owner shall have failed to make such
connection as required by the Connection Ordinance in effect
requiring such connection, or (2) in the case of Developed Properties

13






6/26/24

improperly to connect such Improved Property to the Sewer System,
as compensation for the availability of service by the Township in
connection with the Sewer System. The User Charge shall be payable
by the Owner of each Improved Property commencing the earlier of: (1)
the date of actual, physical connection of an Improved Property to the
Sewer System, or (2) the expiration of the time period for connection
specified in the written notice from the Township to the Owner to
connect, which will not be less than the time period set forth in the
Connection Ordinance. All bills are payable in person at, or by mail or
bank wire funds transfer to, a location designated by the Township. The
basic User Charge will be imposed based upon the number of EDUs
attributed to the Improved Property. EDU's attributed and User
Charges are recalculated on a yearly basis.

All non-single-family Dwelling Units supplied with sewer through one
connection shall be charged by determining their EDU count
calculated to the nearest whole EDU (rounded up).

Thereafter, subject to limitations in the Connection Ordinance, if a
Small User increases its water consumption by more than the EDU(s)
purchased, over a three (3) month period, that User’s EDU allocation
shall be adjusted by the Township to reflect the increase for purposes
of calculating User Charges. The User shall also be attributed
additional EDUs as determined by Pocono Township and be required
to purchase additional EDU(s) at the then current Tapping Fee amount.

Inthe eventa User can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Township
that the User has permanently reduced its long-term water
consumption by more than ten percent (10%) then such Owner may
request a recalculation of EDU attribution to that Improved Property.
The recalculation shall be based upon the highest average monthly
peak flow over a one-year period of data collection. If the Owner is able
to satisfactorily demonstrate that a reduction in EDUs attributed to the
Improved Property should be, and such a reduction is in fact, granted
by the Township, then the Owner shall receive a commensurate
reduction of the basic User Charge effective with the first complete
billing cycle occurring after such determination. However, at no time
shall a user fee be less than one (1) EDU.

In the event a reduction in EDUs attributed to an Improved Property is
granted, the Owner shall forfeit an equal amount of sewer capacity
previously allocated to that property. The Owner shall not, as a result
of the granted decrease in the EDU attribution, be entitled to the refund
of, or credit for, User Charges previously paid or payable. Further,

15



6/26/24

subject to the express exception set forth in Paragraph 2.4.A.6. below,
the Owner shall not be entitled to refund of, or credit for, Tapping Fees
previously paid for such EDUs. Any future increase in the number of
EDUs attributed to such Improved Property, as described in
Paragraphs 2.2.E. or 2.4.A.3. above, shall result in the imposition of
additional Tapping Fees and User Charges.

The foregoing notwithstanding, within sixty (60) days after the
expiration of the first twelve (12) months of being connected to the
Sewer System (the "Initial Connection Period"), the Owner of any
Commercial, Industrial, Multi-residential, Mixed use
(commercial/residential), Educational, Institutional or public (non-
residential) Improved Property whose EDU attribution was based upon
the maximum monthly average (i.e. highest month of the year), may
request a recalculation of the EDU attribution for that Improved
Property based upon its maximum monthly average metered water
consumption, plus 10% for the Initial Connection Period. If that
recalculation establishes that the number of EDUs attributed to such
Improved Property at the time of initial connection was greaterthan the
attribution that would have been made on the basis of the maximum
monthly average metered water consumption for the Initial
Connection Period, the EDU attribution to that Improved Property shall
be reduced accordingly, the Owner shall receive a commensurate
reduction of the basic User Charge effective with the first complete
billing cycle occurring after such determination, the Owner shall forfeit
an equal amount of sewer capacity previously attributed to that
Improved Property. Any future increase in the number of EDUs
allocated to such lmproved Property, in excess of the reattributed
count, shall result in the imposition of additional Tapping Fees and
User Charges.

In addition, solely with respect to any Commercial, Industrial,
Multi-residential, Mixed use (commercial/residential), Educational,
Institutional or public (non- residential) Improved Property which, prior
to connection, was operating a private sanitary sewage treatment
plant to provide sewer service for that Improved Property, and with
respect to which EDUs were initially attributed to such Improved
Property in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.2.C.2. above,
the Owner of that Improved Property may request a recalculation of the
EDU attribution for that Improved Property based upon its maximum
monthly average metered sewer flow for the Initial Connection Period,
provided, in the opinion of the Township, the Improved Property had a
properly operating and properly calibrated sewer meter installed and
operating for the Initial Connection Period. If that recalculation

16



6/26/24

establishes that the number of EDUs attributed to such Improved
Property at the time of initial connection was greater than the
attribution that would have been made on the basis of the maximum
monthly average metered sewer flows for the Initial Connection Period,
the EDU attribution to that Improved Property shall be reduced
according; the Owner shall receive a commensurate reduction of the
basic User Charge effective with the first complete billing cycle
occurring after such determination; for all future purposes of billing
and attribution of EDUs, provided the sewer meter remains installed,
properly calibrated and properly operating, monthly metered sewer
flows shall be utilized in lieu of metered water consumption; the Owner
shall forfeitan equal amount of sewer capacity previously attributed to
that Improved Property; and the Owner shall be entitled to a refund of,
or credit for, Tapping Fees previously paid for such forfeited sewer
capacity. Any future increase in the number of EDUs allocated to such
Improved Property, in excess of the reattributed count, shall result in
the imposition of additional Tapping Fees and User Charges.

Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to prohibit this Township
from entering into separate or special agreements with Owners of
Improved Property or other Persons with respect to the User Charge or
surcharge to be imposed in those cases where, due to special or
unusual circumstances, the User Charge set forth herein shall be
deemed by this Township, in its sole discretion, to be inequitable, or
where itis in the best interests of this Township to do so.

No approvals by the PA DEP under the provisions of Act 537 represent
purchase or Reservation of EDUs. Capacity allocations under Act 537
represent the right for a User to connect to the Pocono System at a
given flow allocation, subject to purchase of the EDUs through
payments of Tapping Fees. No capacity is guaranteed by Pocono
Township until such time Tapping Fees are paid, and User Fees are
paid on said Tapping Fees.

B. Basis for Preparation of Bills

1,

Typically, all bills for sewer services furnished by the Township will be
issued monthly based upon the current Schedule of Public Sewer
Rates and Charges of the Township.

The User Charge shall be non-abatable for non-use of sewer service,
and non- cumulative against subsequent use. In the case of fractional
bills covering less than a month, minimum charges and allowances of
sewer shall be pro-rated for new connections only.

17



6/26/24

The Owner of an Improved Property shall be fully liable for paymentif a
tenant or other User moves out without paying the bill. Tenants shall
not be billed directly by the Township and the Owner shall be
responsible for passing the bill onto the tenant for payment if the lease
agreement calls for the tenant to pay sewer bills.

Bills for surcharges as outlined in this Resolution shall be billed directly
from the Township separate from service bills.

Payment of Bills

1.

All bills are due and payable within twenty-one (21) days after the date
of the bill, and a late fee equal to 10% per annum of the amount of such
bill for the number of days such bill is delinquent (calculated on the
basis of a year of 365 days), will be added to all bills if not paid when
due. Acceptance of remittance of bills on the last day of this twenty-
one (21) day period shall be determined by the date of actual receipt of
the User's payment at the designated payment office.

If a User has not served written protest to the Township within fifteen
(15) days after the date of a bill, it shall be considered an undisputed
bill.

If a bill is paid by check and the check is returned by the bank for any
reason, a charge of $20.00, or as may be amended from time to time,
shall be paid by the User in addition to the amount of the bill and the
late fee.

Payment schedules can be obtained on a case-by-case basis pending
the Township's approval.

Failure of any person to receive bills for User Charges and other
charges shall not be considered an excuse for non-payment, nor shall
such failure result in an extension of the period of time during which
the bill shall be payable.

Every Owner of Improved Property shall remain liable for the payment
of User Charges and surcharges until the later of: (1) the receipt by the
Township of written notice by such Owner that the Improved Property
has been sold, containing the correct name and mailing address of the
new Owner, or (2) the date on which title to the Improved Property is
transferred to a new Owner. Failure to provide notice renders an Owner
continuously liable for any charges that may accrue until such time as

18









2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

B. If an employee of the Township, or its agent, is called out after normal
business hours in response to a complaint by a User and if the cause of such
complaint is not deemed to be the responsibility of the Township, then the
User will be charged on the basis of time and materials with a minimum
service charge of $150.00, which fee may be changed from time to time.

CONDITIONS OF PLUMBING SYSTEM

The piping and fixtures on the Improved Property shall be in satisfactory condition at
all times. The Township shall not be liable for any accidents, breaks, or infiltration
resulting from connection of a Building Sewer to a Lateral or Sewer. The Township
shall not be responsible for piping and fixtures of any User or for any damage to the
Improved Property which may result from the Building Sewer or Lateral constructed
by the User.

INDIVIDUAL LIABILITY FOR JOINT SERVICE

Two or more Persons who jointly have sewer service shall be jointly and severally
liable for all bills issued by the Township, its agent or BCRA pertaining to the same.
The Township reserves the right in such individual cases when deemed necessary to
make one or more of said parties the guarantor for payment of said bill and to send a
single bill.

No new joint applications for sewer service shall be granted by the Township and all
Building Sewers must connect to a Lateral dedicated and solely utilized for a specific
Building Sewer.

INSPECTION

Authorized employees of the Township, or its agent, presenting an identification
card, shall have access to the Improved Property at all reasonable hours, for the
purpose of sewer facility inspection, installation, repair and/or replacement;
inspection, setting, reading, repairing, and removal of the water meter or sewer
meter; and for all other justifiable purposes in related to the Sewer System.

INTERFERENCE WITH THE SEWER SYSTEM

For the protection of the Sewer System, no Person shall damage, injure, molest,
disturb, or interfere with any part of the Sewer System. Where any such damage,
injury or molestation, disturbance, or interference takes place, any Person observing
or becoming aware of the same shall notify the Township immediately.

2.10 RENEWAL OF SERVICE

6/26/24 21






16.

17.
18.
19.

20.
21.
22,

23.

24.
25.

26.

27

28.
29,
30.

Schools and Daycares r
a. Per Employee
b. Per Student

c. PerCaf. Meal Service

d. Showers Total # of Showers
Gym/Fitness Center Patron
Post Office Each

Fire House Each

(Not including social clubs or residential services)

Nursing Home/Hospital Bed

Funeral Home Each

Stadium Seat

(Notincluding food services)

Banquet or Service Hall Each

a. None-food services Seat

b. Food Services Meal
(Disposal Utensils and dishware)

c. Food Services Meal
(Washable Utensils and dishware)

Recreation Area w/o services Each

Movie Theaters Seat/Car

(indoor and drive in)

Commercial garbage grinder Each
.Camps

a. Camp Site Site

b. RV/camper Site

c. Laundry Services Site
Churches Seat
Dormitory/group housing Bed
Motel/Hotel Room

Total # of Employees
Total # of Student
Total of a + b above

247.0
10.0, Plus
8.5, Plus
10.0, Plus
100.0
16.5
247.0
247

123.5
494.0
3.0

1.0, Plus
5.0, Plus

8.0, Plus

247.0
3.5

247.0

50.0
100.0
15.0
2.0
35.0
75.0

B. Existing Users and those proposed uses that can provide flow data for no less
than one year from a similar facility may utilize the peak monthly recorded flow

plus 10% factor of safety as the basis of EDU allocation.

C. All EDU flow calculations are subject to review and approval by the Township
Engineer.

SECTION 3 - PROHIBITED WASTES

3.1 No Person shall discharge, or shall cause or allow to be discharged, into the Sewer
System any storm sewer, surface water, artesian well water, spring water, ground
water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, building foundation drainage, cellar
drainage, any swimming pool filter or pool discharges , condensate, de-ionized

6/26/24

23



water, noncontact cooling water or drainage from roof leader connections. The
Commissioners may, by a Special Sewer Services Agreement, allow for such
discharges with specific conditions-based recommendations for monitoring and
restrictions based on recommendations from the Engineer.

3.2 Except as otherwise provided, no Person shall discharge, or cause or allow to be
discharged, into the Sewer System any matter or substance:

A.

6/26/24

Having a temperature higher than one hundred forty degrees Fahrenheit (140°
F.) or less than thirty-two degrees Fahrenheit (32° F.), or which will inhibit
biological activity in the Treatment Plant resulting in Interference, but in no
case which causes the temperature at the introduction into the Treatment
Plant to exceed 104 degrees F (40 degrees C);

Which causes Pass Through or Interference;

Any liquids, solids or gases which by reason of their nature or quantity are, or
may be, sufficient either alone or by interaction with other substances to
cause fire or explosion or be injurious in any other way to the Treatment Plant
or to the operation of the Treatment Plant, including, but not limited to, waste
streams with a closed-cup flashpoint of less than 140° F using methods in 40
CFR 261.21. At no time shall two (2) successive readings on an explosion
hazard meter, at any point of discharge into the system (or at any point in the
system), be more than five percent (5%) nor any single reading over ten
percent (10%) of the Lower Explosive Limits (LEL) of the meter. Prohibited
materials include, but are not limited to, gasoline, kerosene, naphtha,
benzene, toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, aldehydes, peroxides,
chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides and sulfides and any
other substances which the Township, the Commonwealth or EPA has
notified the User is a fire hazard or a hazard to the Sewer System;

Containing any solid wastes with particles greater than one-half inch (1/2") in
any dimension, resulting from preparation, cooking, and dispensing of food
and from handling, storage and sale of produce, which wastes commonly are
known as garbage, which have not been ground by household type garbage
disposal units or other suitable garbage grinders;

Containing any solids or viscous substances which may cause obstruction to
flowin the Sewer System or other interference with the proper operation of the
Sewer System and/or the Treatment Plant such as, but not limited to: animal
guts or tissues, paunch manure, bones, hair, hides or fleshings, feathers,
entrails, whole blood, feathers, ashes, cinders, sand, spent lime, stone or
marble dust, metal, glass, straw, shavings, grass clippings, rags, spent grains,
spent hops, waste paper, strings, wood, plastics, gas, tar, asphalt residues,

24



6/26/24

residues from refining or processing of fuel or lubricating oil, mud, glass
grinding or polishing wastes, dental floss, wool or other fibers;

Having a pH lower than 5.0 or higher than 10.0, or having any other corrosive
property capable of causing damage or hazards to structures or equipment of
the Sewer System or any Sewer or to any Person engaged in operation and
maintenance of the Sewer System;

Containing toxic or poisonous substances, or which result in the presence of
toxic gases, vapors, or fumes, in sufficient quantity to injure or to interfere with
any sewage treatment process, to constitute hazards to humans or animals
or to create any hazards in sewers which shall receive treated effluent from
the Sewer System;

Containing dyes or other materials with objectionable color, from any source
that will result in a Treatment Plant effluent exceeding limits in compliance
with applicable state or federal regulations, and/or the Treatment Plant's
NPDES permit;

Any substance which may cause the Treatment Plant's effluent or any other
product of the Treatment Plant, such as residues, sludges, or scums, to be
unsuitable for reclamation and reuse or to interfere with the reclamation
process. In no case shall a substance discharged to the Treatment Plant
cause the Township to be in non-compliance with sludge use or disposal
criteria, guidelines or regulations affecting sludge use or disposal developed
pursuant to the Solid Waste Disposal Act, the Clean Air Act, the Toxic
Substances Control Act or Commonwealth criteria applicable to the sludge
management method being used,;

Containing radio-active substances and/or isotopes of such half-life or
concentration that will result in a Treatment plant effluent exceeding limits in

compliance with applicable state or federal regulations;

Having a chlorine demand in excess of twelve (12) mg/I at a detention time of
twenty (20) minutes;

Prohibited by any permit issued by the Commonwealth or the EPA;
Containing wastes which are not amenable to biological treatment or
reduction in existing treatment facilities, specifically non-biodegradable

complex carbon compounds;

Having a waste strength in excess of the table below (except as authorized by
written agreement);

25






Parameter

concentration, mg/I|

Permitted Mass
Loading per EDU Lbs

Amonia Nitrogen as N 36 0.074
Arsenic 5.00 0.010
Barium 100.00 0.206
Benzene 0.50 0.001
BODS 306.00 0.631
Cadmium (as Cd) 1.00 0.002
Carbon Tetrachloride 0.50 0.001
Chlordane 0.03 0.00006
Chlorobenzene 100.00 0.206
Chloroform 6.00 0.012
Chromium 5.00 0.010
o-Cresol 200.00 0.412
m-Cresol 200.00 0.412
p-Cresol 200.00 0.412
Cresci 200.00 0.412
2,4-D 10.00 0.021
1,4-Dichlorobenzene 7.50 0.015
1,2 Dichloroethane 0.50 0.0010
1,1 Dichloroethylene 0.70 0.0014
2,4 Dinitrotoluene 0.13 0.0003
Endrin 0.02 0.00004
FOG 87.00 0.179
Heptachlor 0.01 0.00002
Hexachlorobenzene 0.13 0.0003
Hexachlorobutadiene 0.50 0.0010
Hexachloroethane 3.00 0.006
Lead 5.00 0.010
Lindane 0.40 0.0008
Mercury 0.20 0.0004
Mexthoxychlor 10.00 0.021
Methyl ethyl ketone 200.00 0.412
Nitrobenzene 2.00 0.004
Pentachlorophenol 100.00 0.206
Pyridine 5.00 0.010
Selenium 1.00 0.002
Silver 5.00 0.010
Tetrachloroethylene 0.70 0.0014
Toxaphene 0.50 0.001
TP as P 21.00 0.043
Trichloroethylene 0.50 0.001
2,4,5 - Trichlorophenol 400.00 0.825
2,4,6 - Trichlorophenol 2.00 0.004
2,4,5- TP (Silvex) 1.00 0.002
TSS 260.00 0.536
TDS 327.00 0.674
Vinyl Chloride 0.20 0.0004

6/26/24

27



U,
wastes;

V.

BB

CC.

DD.

6/26/24

Containing any substance not mentioned in the foregoing list that will cause
Interference or Pass Through at the Treatment Plant and exceed the maximum
permitted levels for such substance under the requirements of the EPA,
DRBC, BCRA, the Commonwealth or; other governmental agencies having
jurisdiction;

Any other substance prohibited by resolution, rule, regulation, or agreement
of the Township hereafter enacted or adopted from time to time;

Sludges, screenings, or other residues from the pretreatment of industrial

Consisting of medical wastes, except as specifically authorized by the
Township in a wastewater discharge permit;

Causing, alone or in conjunction with other sources, the Treatment Plant's
effluent to fail a toxicity test;

Consisting of detergents, surface-active agents or other substances which
may cause excessive foaming in the POTW; or

Consisting of fats, oil or greases of animal or vegetable origin in
concentrations which exceed 87 mg/I or otherwise cause Interference or Pass
Through.

Containing total solids of such character and quantity that unusual attention
orexpense is required to handle such materials at the Treatment Plant, except
as may be approved in writing by BCRA and supported by the BCRA's
engineers.

Containing trucked or hauled pollutants.

Consisting of noxious or malodorous liquids, gases, solids, or other
wastewater which, either singly or by interaction with other wastes, are
sufficient to create a public nuisance or a hazard to life, or to prevent entry
into the sewers for maintenance or repair.

Containing cesspool, septic tank, porta-potty, holding tank discharges, or
other septage, unless approved or consented to by the Township.

Containing sewage, water, or waste of such character and quantity that
unusual attention or expense is required to handle such materials at the
Treatment Plant, except as may be approved in writing by BCRA and
supported by BCRA’ s engineers.

28



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

EE.  Containing sewage, water, or waste containing substances in demonstrated
sufficient quantities, which when admixed in the total Treatment Plant
influent wastewaters, will interfere with the biochemical processes of the
Treatment Plant or the ultimate disposal of sludge or that will pass throughthe
Treatment Plant and cause the effluent to exceed any Legal Requirements. No
specific limits have been set herein. Actual Treatment Plant performance will
be the basis for setting such limits.

FF. Containing Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) which cannot be removed by the
treatment process, which consequently passes on to the Treatment Plant’s
effluent, thereby violating the Treatment Plant's NPDES permit except as may
be approved in writing by the Township and BCRA.

Under no circumstances shall any Person discharge or cause to be discharged into
the Sewer System any of the substances listed above, without first securing written
permission to do so from the designated representative of the Township.

Upon the promulgation of the Federal Categorical Pretreatment Standards for a
particular industrial subcategory, the Federal Standard, if more stringent than
limitations imposed under this Resolution for sources in that subcategory, shall
immediately supersede the limitations imposed under this Resolution. The Township
shall notify all affected Users of the applicable reporting requirements under 40 CFR,
Section 403.12.

No User shall ever increase the use of process wastewater or, in any way, attempt to
dilute a discharge as a partial or complete substitute for adequate treatment to
achieve compliance with the limitations contained in the Federal Categorical
Pretreatment Standards, or in any other pollutant-specific limitation developed by
the Township or the Commonwealth.

Whenever a Person is authorized by the Township and the appropriate governmental
agencies to discharge any Domestic Sanitary Sewage or Industrial Waste containing
any of the substances or possessing any of the characteristics described above,
such discharge shall be subject to the continuing approval, inspection, and review of
the Township. If, in the opinion of the Township, such discharges are causing or will
cause damage to the sewage system infrastructure or will cause the Township to be
in violation of any agreement or order, the Township shall order the Person causing
such discharge to cease doing so forthwith, or to take other appropriate action,
including exercising the remedies provided in the Connection Ordinance, or

delegating to another party duties to take appropriate action, to eliminate the harmful
discharge.

6/26/24 29



3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

Whenever the Township determines that a User is contributing to the Sewer System
a Prohibited Discharge, the Owner shall be so notified and shall be required to take
such corrective actions as are necessary to correct and alleviate such discharge.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as prohibiting any special agreement or
arrangement between the Township and the Owner of an Improved Property or other
Person allowing Industrial Wastes of unusual strength or character to be admitted
into the Sewer System.

Where necessary or appropriate, in the opinion of the Township or BCRA, the Owner
of an Improved Property shall provide, at the sole expense of the Owner, suitable
pretreatment facilities acceptable to the Township and BCRA.

Plans, specifications, and any other pertinent information relating to proposed
facilities for preliminary treatment and handling of Industrial Wastes shall be
submitted for approval of the Township and BCRA. No construction of any such
facility shall commence until approval has been obtained, in writing, from the
Township and BCRA, and until approval has been obtained from any and all
regulatory bodies having jurisdiction.

Such facilities for preliminary treatment and handling of Industrial Wastes shall be
continuously maintained, at the sole expense of the Owner, in good operating
condition satisfactory to the Township and BCRA. The Township and BCRA shall have
access to such facilities at reasonable times for purposes of inspection and
sampling.

SECTION 4 - INDUSTRIAL WASTES AND LARGE SYSTEM USERS

4.1

4.2

4.3

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the Sewer System any
Industrial Wastes or wastes not generated from Domestic Sources without prior
application for and receipt of a written permit from the Township and/or BCRA.

Any Person desiring to make or use a connection through which wastes not from a
Domestic Source shall be discharged Into the Sewer System shall file with the
Township/BCRA a completed "Industrial Wastes Questionnaire", furnished by the
Township/BCRA, which shall supply pertinent data, including estimated quantity of
flow, characteristics and constituents of the proposed discharge. The cost of
obtaining all such data shall be borne by the Person desiring to make or use the
connection to the Sewer System.

Ten (10) days prior to the first day of January, April, July and October of each year,
each Large System User shall provide a written report consisting of total anticipated
flows in the following quarter, any changes in operations in the service connection,
reports of any spills or exceedances, any testing requested by the Township or any

6/26/24 30



other event or potential service change which could affect the system operations or
exceed hydraulic or organic loading allocation.

4.4.  When required by the Township, the Owner of any Improved Property serviced by a
Building Sewer carrying Industrial Wastes or Large System User shall install, at his
expense, a suitable control manhole, together with such necessary meters and other
appurtenances in the Building Sewer, to facilitate observation, sampling, and
measurement of the waste flow.

4.5. Al measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of waters and
wastewaters to which reference is made herein shall be performed in accordance
with test method(s) approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™)
under40 C.F.R. Part 136. If 40 C.F.R. Part 136 does not contain sampling or analytical
techniques for the pollutant in question, or where EPA determines that Part 136
sampling and analytical techniques are inappropriate for the pollutant in question,
sampling and analysis shall be performed by using validated analytical methods or
any other applicable sampling and analytical procedures, including procedures
suggested by the Authority. Samples shall be collected at the control manhole, orin
the event that no special manhole has been required, the control manhole shall be
considered to be the nearest downstream manhole in the Sewer System to the point
at which the Building Sewer is connected, or at another location determined by the
Township to be most representative of the discharge under evaluation. (The
particular analyses involved will determine whether a twenty-four (24) hour
composite of all outfalls of an Improved Property is appropriate or whether a grab
sample or samples must be taken.)

4.6 The Township may, at its sole discretion, require that metering data or real time
testing data, be integrated into the Township SCADA System. Such work shall be
performed by the Township’s Control Consultant with costs of the installation and
integration being paid by the User.

4.7.  Any Industrial Establishment discharging Domestic Sanitary Sewage and/or
Industrial Wastes into the Sewer System and contemplating a change in the method
of operation which will alter the characteristics and/or volume of such wastes being
discharged shall notify the Township and BCRA, in writing, at least thirty (30) days
prior to institution of such change.

SECTION 5 - INTERCEPTORS, GARBAGE GRINDERS, PRETREATMENT AND/OR
EQUALIZATION

5.1 Industrial Establishments discharging Industrial Wastes shall be subject to the Rules
and Regulations adopted by BCRA and attached hereto as Exhibit A. Township
appoints BCRA to as its agent on its behalf with respect to the regulation of Industrial

6/26/24 31



5.2

5.3

5.4

Establishments. The Township also retains the right to provide such administration
and enforcement as it deems necessary for the protection of the Township’s System.

Grease, Oil, and Sand Interceptors shall be provided by the Owner of any Industrial,
Commercial, Educational or Institutional Establishment, at his or its sole cost and
expense, when required by the Township and/or BCRA, for the proper handling of
liquid wastes containing excessive grease, inflammable wastes, sand, or other
harmful substances. Allinterceptors shall be of a type and capacity approved by the
Township and/or BCRA and be constructed or installed at a satisfactory location in
accordance with plans approved by the Township and/or BCRA prior to installation
or commencement of construction.

The use of mechanical garbage grinders in an Industrial, Commercial, Educational or
Institutional Establishment shall not be permitted without prior written approvalfrom
the Township.

The Township may require Industrial, Commercial, Educational or Institutional
Establishments having large variations in rates of waste discharge by way of flow rate
on a daily, instantaneous or weekly or by strength of waste to install suitable
regulating devices for pretreating and/or equalizing waste flows to the Sewer System
when in the sole opinion of the Township Engineer that such discharges have
potential to cause damage or operational concerns to the Pocono system or the
BCRAWWTP.

SECTION 6 - GRINDER PUMPS

6.1

6.2

6.3

The Owner of any Improved Property, upon direction of the Township, shall install
(unless otherwise agreed to by the Township), operate and maintain at such Owner's
cost and expense, a grinder pump or similar apparatus satisfactory to the Township
inthe manner and at the location directed by the Township. Such grinder pump shall
be installed at the time such Improved Property is connected to the Sewer System
and shall be subject to inspection and approval together with the remainder of the
Building Sewer.

All grinder pumps shall be owned and operated by the User.
Allgrinder pumps connected to acommon low pressure sewer force main owned and

operated by the Township shall utilize semi positive displacement type pumps with a
flow rate per pump between 9 and 16 gpm regardless of operating pressures.

SECTION 7- VIOLATIONS

6/26/24 32



7.1 For any Violation or Significant Violation the Township may pursue any or all of the

following enforcement rights and remedies as the Township, in its sole discretion,
may elect:

A. The Township shall have all Enforcement rights and remedies as set forth in
the Connection Ordinance, all of which rights and remedies are incorporated
herein by reference; and/or,

B. If a User is the source or cause, in whole or in part, of a Significant Violation
and the Township either incurs, or is put on notice that it must pay, Violation
Costs and/or a surcharge imposed by BCRA in relation to such Significant
violation, the Township shall provide notice thereof to the User, and shall have
the right to impose, demand and collect payment of/reimbursement for all
such Violation Costs and surcharges imposed by BCRA upon the Township
with respect to each such Significant Violation, which shall be due and
payable by the User to the Township upon demand; in addition the Township
may require that the User (i) indemnify and hold harmless the Township from,
and pay, any and all resulting uninsured liabilities associated with such
Violation Costs, (ii) pay any subrogation claims of the Township and/or (iii) pay
any costs relating to obtaining any new permits and/or any increases in the
insurance premiums payable by the Township resulting from such Violation or
Significant Violation; and/or,

C. The User shall pay to the Township upon demand any surcharge(s) imposed
upon the User by the Township pursuant to this Resolution.

7.2.  Inaddition to the foregoing, the User shall take immediate action, with the approval
of the Township, to alleviate the cause(s) of the Violation or Significant Violation, at
the sole cost and expense of the User. The Township reserves all legal rights and
remedies, including without limitation, the right to injunctive relief to enforce the
obligation of the User to take such corrective action.

SECTION 8 - MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 The Township, BCRA, and their respective agents shall have the right of access, at all
reasonable times, to any part of any Improved Property as necessary for purposes of
inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, and testing and for performance
of other functions relating to service rendered by the Township and/or BCRA. Where
the Owner/User has security measures in force which would require proper
identification and clearance before entry onto their premises, the Owner/User shall
make the necessary arrangements with their security guards/personnel so that upon
presentation of suitable identification, personnel from the Township and BCRA will
be permitted to enter onto the Owner's/User's premises, without delay, for the
purposes of performing their specific responsibilities.

6/26/24 33



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

The Owner of any Improved Property shall be liable for all acts of tenants or other
occupants of such Improved Property, as may be permitted by law, insofar as such
acts shall be governed by the provisions of this Resolution.

The Township may, from time to time, modify these rules and regulations as it shall
deem necessary and proper in connection with the use and operation of the Sewer
System (as well as BCRA in the case of the Treatment Plant), which rules and
regulations shall be, shall become and shall be construed as part of this Resolution.
The Township hereby adopts BCRA’s Rules and Regulations (appended hereto as
Exhibit A) by reference. Should any of the provisions of the rules and regulations
expressly set forth in this Resolution conflict with or be inconsistent with, BCRA’s
Rules and Regulations, then BCRA’s Rules and Regulations shall supersede and
control those of the Township, except to the extent such rules and regulations of the
Township are more stringent than the conflicting BCRA’s Rules and Regulations.

Should any provision hereof be finally determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal or invalid, no other provision of this Resolution shall be
affected, and this Resolution shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or
invalid provision had not been contained herein,

This Resolution shall be effective immediately.
Township shall have the right to assign any of its rights, or delegate any its duties,
hereunder to a municipal authority or to another local government unit, in the

Township's sole discretion.

This regulation shall supersede any previous regulation in the event of a conflict in
standards or procedures.

DULY ADOPTED, by the Board of Commissioners of the Township of Pocono, Monroe
County,

Pennsylvania, in lawful session duly assembled, this day of , 20

TOWNSHIP OF POCONO
Monroe County, Pennsylvania

BY:

Chairman of the Board of Commissioners

6/26/24 34












TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO. 2025 - 38

A RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL APPROVAL
OF CRANBERRY CREEK APARTMENTS PRELIMINARY/FINAL LAND
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Applicant, Amire, LLC, submitted a plan application titled “Cranberry
Creek Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plans” (the “Plan”). The
Applicant proposes to construct an apartment complex with 150 apartment units, and a 126-
seat restaurant. The property is located in the C Commercial Zoning District and is known as
Monroe County Tax ID No. 12.9.1.36; and

WHEREAS, the Township Engineer has reviewed the Plan and offered comments in his letters

dated September 8, 2022, February 7, 2023, May 22, 2023, January 25, 2024 and October 13, 2025;
and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Planning Commission recommended conditional plan
approval at its meeting held on October 13, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Pocono Township Board of Commissioners desires to take action on this Plan.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Pocono
Township, County of Monroe, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

That the following requests for modification from the Subdivision and Land Development
Ordinance are hereby granted:

1. SALDO Section 390-29.K — Community impact analysis. Applicant shall not have to
prepare a community impact analysis.

2. SALDO Section 390-55.C(2)(a) — One planning island shall be provided for every 10
parking stalls. There shall be no more than 15 contiguous parking stalls in a row without
a planting island. Applicant shall not be required to install a landscaped island every 15
spaces.

3. SALDO Section 390-55.F(3)(a) & 390-55.F(3)(c) — Property line and road right-of-way
buffers shall be required for the following types of development... all non-residential
development; and all multifamily development; and the Property line/ROW width
requirements; Medium (15’ for all side and rear lot lines and 30’ for the parking buffer
along ROW). Applicant shall be allowed to install less than the required trees in the front
ROW/parking buffer along S.R. 0611, and be permitted to use existing healthy woodlands
as an equivalent to the required buffer tree plantings along the side and rear lot lines.



4. SALDO Section 390-55.G — Materials specifications, maintenance and guarantee.
Applicant shall be permitted to have trees and shrubs planted in the riparian buffer which
are smaller than the requirements of this section.

5. SALDO Section 390-59.B — Parking space and aisle dimensions. Applicant shall be
allowed to reduce the width of the parking spaces from 10 feet to 9 feet.

That the following request for modification of the Brodhead and McMichael Creeks Stormwater
Management Ordinance are hereby granted:

L.

SMO Section 365-8.L — “Roof drains should not be connected to streets, sanitary or storm
sewers, or roadside ditches in order to promote overland flow and infiltration/percolation of
stormwater.” Applicant proposes to have all roof drains connect to the storm sewer.

2. SMO Section 365-13.B. — “Design Criteria for Rainfall Data.” Applicant is proposing to

utilize the NOAA Atlas 14 rainfall data as part of the stormwater management analysis to be
consistent with the NPDES Application calculations.

That the following request for modification of the Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control
Ordinance are hereby granted:

1.

Section 220-8.C — “Edges of newly created slopes shall be a minimum of five feet from
property lines, ultimate/future right-of-way lines of streets, and easements to permit the
normal rounding of the edge without encroachment on the abutting property, right-of-way,
or easement.” Applicant proposes grading to be (0 feet from the site boundaries.

That the “Cranberry Creek Apartments Preliminary/Final Land Development Plans” as
shown on July 13, 2022, as revised, be hereby approved with the following conditions and
provided the plan is revised as follows, subject to the review and approval of the Township
Engineer and/or Township Solicitor:

1.

The applicant shall comply with all of the conditions and requirements identified in the
Township Engineer’s letters dated September 8, 2022, February 7, 2023, May 22, 2023,
January 25, 2024 and October 13, 2025.

The applicant shall enter into an Improvements Agreement with the Township and provide
appropriate security.

The applicant shall enter into a Maintenance Agreement with the Township and provide
appropriate security.

The applicant shall enter into a Stormwater Management and Maintenance Agreement with the
Township.

Prior to the recording of the Plan, the applicant shall pay all necessary fees associated with the
Plan, including but not limited to a fee in lieu of dedicating open space in the amount of
$ , any outstanding plan account charges, and all













October 6, 2025

year bond will have an estimated interest rate of 4.75% and annual payments around $620,000.
Discussion took place between the board and PFM.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to proceed with authorization for financing
and to have PFM/ Township Solicitor to draft debt ordinance amendment & advertise for BOC
meeting 10-20-2025. Discussion took place with the public. All in favor. Motion carried.

PFM & Eckert Seamans & Mike Gable T&M Engineering — Penn Vest Sewer Loan

The township plans to extend sewer services to three areas: Bartonsville Ave., Stadden Road, and
Sullivan Trail, addressing failing septic systems and improving water quality. The total project cost is
estimated at $11.2 million, with potential funding from tapping fees, grants, and a Penn Vest loan, with no
anticipated increase in user rates. Discussion took place. PFM suggests using the sewer funds $7.9
million cash reserves strategically, potentially borrowing from Penn Vest at low interest rates or creating a
rate stabilization fund. The goal is to maintain low user rates while: preservmg financial flexibility for future
needs. Discussion took place.

= R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi; to execofetirne letter of engagement for the
Penn Vest Sewer Loan. Discussion took place. Alliiin;;favor. Motion "'c'a;r‘ri‘evd.

Hearings — Knox Box Amendment:

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardl , Motion carried.

o open the heannq All i |n av

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded b M Velardi, to Close the hearing. All in favor ‘Motion carried.

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by. -.\/elardl to approve Ordinance 2025- 21 amending the
Pocono Township Code of Ordinances, Part |l. General:Legislation: Chapter 170 Emergency Access to
Buildings; § 170-1 Definitions, § 170-4 requrrements for: eX|stlnq Commercral and/or Industrial Buildings.
Discussion took place. Roll CaIIVote E. Gnandt -nay; M. Velardl aye; B: Wlnot aye; R. Wielebinski, aye.
(Passed 3-1) Motion carned ‘ L e ,,

Resolutions

=  Motion to approve ResolptiOn 2025- 3'4 denying prelirninary plan approval of the Swiftwater Pond
LLC preliminary land development plan. The plan was withdrawn and therefore no resolution
was needed i 3

Consent Aqenda

= R Wleleblnskr made a motior seconded by M. Velardi, to approve a consent agenda of the
following items: :
= Qld busmess consrstln of the minutes of the September 15, 2025 regular meeting of the
Board of Commissioners:: E. Gnandt requested the in leu of fees for Tannersville
Point be added:to.the:minutes. This has been updated as of 10/7/25.
= Fmancral transactron's' through October 6, 2025 as presented lncluqu ratification of

Operations, Gross Pavroll, Capital Reserve. Construction Fund, Transfers. All in favor.
Motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS

Personnel

Commissioner Comments

Richard Wielebinski — President



October 6, 2025

R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to task the Chief of Police & Civil Service
Commission to create the eligibility list to present to the Board of Commissioners for hiring purposes.
Discussion took place. All in favor. Motion carried.

= R, Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by M. Velardi, to approve Trick or Treating hours within
Pocono Township Friday, October 31t 2025 from 5:00pm-8:00pm. Discussion took place. All in favor.
Motion carried.

= E. Gnandt made a motion, seconded by B. Winot, to approve Support on RCAP and LSA Grant
Application for Crescent Lake. B. Winot updated the board on his observations and research
regarding the situation. All in favor. Motion carried.

= E. Gnandt abstained from this matter due to a conflict of interest. B. Winot made a motion, seconded
by R. Wielebinski, regarding discussion for a Request for Support:on LSA Grant Application for
Brookdale's Nordic Spa. Discussion took place between the bO"a'r"d" The public commented to not
support this matter. Roll Call: E. Gnandt, abstain; B. Wmot nav, R Wielebinski, nay; M. Velardi, nay;
Motion failed. 2

* E. Gnandt abstained from this matter due to a conflict of interest. B. Winot made a motion, seconded
by R. Wielebinski, regarding discussion for a request for support on an RCAP Grant Application for
Brookdale’s Nordic Spa. Discussion took place: Roll Call: E. Gnandt abstaln B Wnot aye; R.
Wielebinski, nay; M. Velardi, nay: Motion failed. - : :

Natasha Leap — Vice President

Ellen Gnandt — Commissioner :

= Update — Solar Field- Seed mixture was conflrmed :

= E. Gnandt commented that she missed the‘.tBudget meetlng and d|d t receive a curtesy call.
Discussion took placem ;

Brian Winot — Comm|SSIoner :

= Historic Overlay Dlscussmn —L. Dé : prehmlnary draft for review by the board prior to
the next meeting. The attorney th it represents the: ‘undeveloped portion of PMI reached out for
clarification.that it would cover the:entire original Platted subdivision. Waiting on a better map. All the

orlgmal plotted lots were part’ of the National Park Servrce Designation.

Mike Velardl Commlsswner :

= Tent City Update — Citations were flled and the owner has been slowly complying.
= Oktoberfest mugs for sale at $10/ea.

*  Mail in Ballots — Remember to VOTE

= Community Clean Up results -—ritfwas a lackluster turnout.

Reports
Zoning Report-SFM Cons‘ﬁ_l‘t,i._rig;"—' violations are being cleared up.
Police — James Wagner, Chief

Manager Report — Jerrod Belvin

» Website is now active — this is a much cleaner look with a lot more access of forms along with
information.

»  Parks update — Issues still taking place at Mountain View Basketball Courts. Looking to have shorter
hours next year to assist in rectifying the issues. Discussion was had by the Board. Public Works
refurbished the old Glenwood Hall Fountain that is approximately 130 years old. Historic Walk is
moving forward. Two new fountains have been installed in the ponds at TLC.

»  Fuel Bid - PMCOG Fuel Bid was accepted

= MS4 Application has been accepted from DEP with the education session with Public Works set for
October 16'.

































46 |[12635402582524 {12.15.1.45 0.57|SUNSET AVE

47 [12635402582796 |12.15.1.11 0.51(SUNSET AVE

48 [12635402583551 |12.15.1.23 0.57|SUNSET AVE

49 (12635402583990 |12.15.1.8-2 0.82|305 MANOR DR
50 |12635402584732 (12.15.1.11-1 0.51|SUNSET AVE

51 |12635402585090 |12.94624 0.53|SUMMIT DR

52 112635402585407 |12.15.1.44 0.57[SUNSET AVE

53 [12635402585846 {12.15.1.12 0.27|POCONO MANOR STATE RD
54 [12635402586433 |12.15.1.22 0.61|320 SUNSET AVE
55 112635402586755 |12.15.1.13 1.02(303 MANOR DR
56 [12635402587082 {12.15.1.32 0.51|SUMMIT AVE

57 |12635402588087 {12.15.1.33 0.57(342 SUMMIT AVE
58 [12635402588400 {12.15.1.21 0.66|SUNSET AVE

59 112635402588728 |12.15.1.15 0.51|POCONO MANOR STATE RD
60 |12635402589195 |12.15.1.34 0.57|SUMMIT AVE

61 |12635402589450 |12.15.1.20 0.57|SUNSET AVE

62 |12635402589606 (12.15.1.14 1.49(301 SUNSET AVE
63 |12635402590031 (12.15.1.8-1 0.31|POCONO MANOR STATE RD
64 |12635402591551 (12.15.1.3 0.59|FAIRVIEW AVE
65 [12635402591664 {12.15.1.62 0.5|FAIRVIEW AVE
66 |12635402591757 |12.15.1.63 0.5[FAIRVIEW AVE
67 |12635402591859 (12.15.1.64 0.5|FAIRVIEW AVE
68 112635402670816 (12.15.1.53 0.68|SUMMIT AVE

69 [12635402671914 |12.15.1.52 0.64|SUMMIT AVE

70 |12635402680292 |12.15.1.35 0.57|344 SUMMIT AVE
71 12635402682012 (12.15.1.37 0.64|SUMMIT AVE

72 112635402682651 |12.15.1.17 1.6/315 MANOR DR
73 112635402683056 |12.15.1.36 0.66(350 SUMMIT AVE
74 112635402683451 {12.15.1.19 1.93|346 SUMMIT AVE
75 112635402684277 |12.14.1.77 0.25|CLIFF RD

76 12635402685009 (12.14.1.97 0.62|CLIFF RD

77 112635402686111 |12.14.1.96 0.62|CLIFF RD

78 112635402686354 |12.14.1.78 0.97|256 SUMMIT AVE
79 [12635402686667 |{12.15.1.18 1.9|41 MANOR DR
80 [12635402687482 |12.14.1.79-1 0.62]255 SUMMIT AVE
81 112635402687879 |12.14.1.31-1 0.61|SUMMIT AVE

82 [12635402688491 |12.14.1.79 0.45|CLIFF RD

83 |12635402689198 |12.14.1.95 8.08|CLIFF RD

84 112635402689631 |12.14.1.76 0.82143 MANOR DR
85 [12635402697271 |12.14.1.30-3 0.21|0OAK LN

86 [12635402698033 |12.14.1.31 0.81{SUMMIT AVE

87 112635402698233 |12.14.1.30-2 0.16|OAK LN

88 [12635402699204 {12.14.1.30-1 0.18(0AK LN

89 [12635402699277 |12.14.1.30 0.18|0OAK LN

90 (12635402780440 |12.14.1.80 0.38|CLIFF RD

91 [12635402780558 |12.14.1.75 0.5|MT POCONO AVE
92 [12635402780891 |12.14.1.49 0.87|MANOR DR




93 |12635402781557 (12.14.1.74 0.51{45 MANOR DR
94 |(12635402781918 (12.14.1.48 0.62|15 PARK TER

95 [12635402782309 {12.14.1.81 0.47|CLIFF RD

96 |12635402782566 |12.14.1.73 0.44|MT POCONO AVE
97 |[12635402782840 (12.14.1.49-1 0.5|12 PARK TER

98 [12635402783139 |12.14.1.115 0.68|CLIFF RD

99 [12635402783535 |12.14.1.72 0.48MT POCONO AVE
100(12635402783779 (12.14.1.50 0.5|11 PARK TER
101|12635402784260 (12.14.1.114 0.64|CLIFF RD

102 {12635402784399 [12.14.1.82 0.68({MT POCONO AVE
103 |12635402784534 (12.14.1.72-1 0.44|MANOR DR

104 {12635402785281 |12.14.1.113 0.68|CLIFF RD
105(12635402785533 (12.14.1.72-2 0.43|MANOR DR

106 |12635402785707 (12.14.1.51 0.5|10 PARK TER

107 |12635402786522 (12.14.1.72-3 0.37|MANOR DR

108 |12635402786715 (12.14.1.52 0.46|9 PARK TER

109 |12635402787201 (12.14.1.112 0.67|CLIFF RD
110|12635402787367 (12.14.1.83 0.1|CLIFF RD
111112635402787571 (12.14.1.71 0.5|MT POCONO AVE
112 {12635402787755 |12.14.1.53 0.5|8 PARK TER

113 {12635402788243 |12.14.1.111 0.77|CLIFF RD

114 {12635402788560 (12.14.1.70 0.5|MT POCONO AVE
115|12635402788774 (12.14.1.54 0.5|7 PARKTER

116 |12635402789261 (12.14.1.94 0.62|CLIFF RD

117 112635402789570 (12.14.1.69 0.5|53 MANOR DR
118 |12635402789794 (12.14.1.55 0.5|6 PARK TER

119 (12635402790101 {12.14.1.32 0.58|38 SUMMIT AVE
120]12635402791106 (12.14.1.33-1 0.12|SUMMIT AVE
121]12635402791330 (12.14.1.29 0.39{109 OAK LN

122 12635402792020 {12.14.1.47 0.41|{16 PARK TER
123|12635402792250 ({12.14.1.33 0.72|37 SUMMIT AVE
124 112635402792333 [12.14.1.28 0.21|WOODLAND AVE
125112635402793347 |12.110058 0.41{105 OAK LN

126 |12635402794012 (12.14.1.46 1|17 SUMMIT AVE
127 (12635402794254 |12.14.1.34 0.44|35 SUMMIT AVE
128|12635402794402 (12.14.1.27-2 0.21|0AK LN

129 {12635402795096 |12.14.1.45 0.5[19 PARK TER
130|12635402795297 (12.14.1.35 0.45|34 SUMMIT AVE
131]12635402795401 (12.14.1.27 0.24|0AK LN
13212635402796403 (12.14.1.27-1 0.23{102 OAK LN
13312635402796456 (12.14.1.26-2 0.22|{OAK LN
134112635402797019 (12.14.1.44 0.5|20 SUMMIT AVE
135112635402797350 (12.14.1.36 0.48|SUMMIT AVE
136 |12635402797427 |12.14.1.26-1 0.24|0AK LN
13712635402798393 (12.14.1.37 0.52|32 SUMMIT AVE
138 (12635402798409 |12.14.1.26 0.25|WOODLAND AVE
139|12635402799122 ({12.14.1.43 0.96(21 SUMMIT AVE




140 {12635402799541 |12.14.1.25 0.52|97 OAK LN
141)12635402880187 [12.14.1.110 0.45|CLIFF RD

142 (12635402880375 (12.14.1.84 0.08(CLIFF RD

143 |12635402880489 [12.14.1.68 0.54({MT POCONO AVE
144 112635402881185 |12.14.1.109 0.56|CLIFF RD
145(12635402881723 [12.14.1.56 0.5|5 PARK TER

146 |12635402882352 {12.14.1.85 0.37|CLIFF RD

147 |112635402882449 (12.14.1.67 1.18(55 MANOR DR

148 {12635402882726 |12.14.1.57 0.5|4 PARK TER

149 (12635402883112 (12.14.1.108 0.58|CLIFF RD

150 (12635402883390 [12.14.1.86 0.31|CLIFF RD
151(12635402883591 |12.14.1.66 0.59|57 SWIFTWATER AVE
152 (12635402883759 (12.14.1.58 0.5|3 PARKTER

153 |12635402884150 [12.14.1.107 0.62|CLIFF RD

154 112635402884591 |12.14.1.65 0.52|58 SWIFTWATER AVE
155(12635402884860 (12.14.1.59 0.5|MT POCONO AVE
157 {12635402885310 [12.14.1.87 0.4|CLIFF RD

158 |12635402886341 |12.14.1.88 0.45(244 CLIFF RD

159 (12635402886500 [12.14.1.64 0.63|59 SWIFTWATER AVE
160 {12635402887143 |12.14.1.105 0.53|CLIFF RD
161(12635402887575 [12.14.1.63 1.03|61 SWIFTWATER AVE
162 {12635402888165 [12.14.1.104 0.5|CLIFF RD

163 12635402888334 (12.14.1.89 0.84|CLIFF RD

164 (12635402889185 |12.14.1.103 0.58|CLIFF RD

165 (12635402889379 (12.14.1.90 0.51|CLIFF RD

166 |12635402889529 (12.14.1.62 0.53|SWIFTWATER AVE
167 |12635402890346 |12.14.1.38 0.54{31 SUMMIT AVE
168 |12635402891168 |{12.14.1.42 1{24 SUMMIT AVE

169 (12635402891490 (12.14.1.39-1 0.62{30 SUMMIT AVE
170(12635402892525 (12.14.1.24 1.2|WOODLAND AVE
171(12635402893431 [12.14.1.39 0.38(29 OAK LN

172 12635402894202 (12.14.1.41 0.96{25 SUMMIT AVE

173 112635402894460 {12.14.1.40 0.24{28 OAK LN

174 (12635402895512 (12.14.1.23 0.33|90 OAK LN
175|12635402898600 [12.92933 0.57(85 WOODLAND AVE
176 |12635402899526 (12.14.1.19 0.46|WOODLAND AVE
177 {12635402899745 (12.14.1.17 1|76 SWIFTWATER AVE
178(12635402980642 [12.14.1.61 0.64[SWIFTWATER AVE
179 (12635402981108 (12.14.1.102 0.57|CLIFF RD
180|12635402981412 {12.14.1.91 0.78|CLIFF RD
18112635402982213 {12.14.1.92 0.57|CLIFF RD
182(12635402983876 (12.14.1.6 1.25|66 SWIFTWATER AVE
183112635402984949 (12.14.1.7 0.9(67 SWIFTWATER AVE
184 |12635402985677 |12.14.1.101 0.57|LAKE DR
185112635402986830 (12.14.1.5 0.54|CLIFF RD

186 |12635402987939 [12.14.1.4 0.94(30 CLIFF RD

187 (12635402990497 (12.92832 0.83|WOODLAND AVE





































	11-3-25_BOC_Agenda.pdf
	doc04737420251030132658
	doc04737520251030132746

